

URBAN FORESTRY BOARD REGULAR MEETING

Wednesday, December 19, 2012 - 5:30 p.m. City Hall, 301 W. 2nd Street, Room 1029 Austin, Texas 78701

URBAN FORESTRY BOARD MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2012

Board Members in Attendance:

Patrick Brewer, Chair, Tom Hayes, Vice Chair, Board Members Nicholas Classen, Ryan Fleming, Peggy Maceo, Daniel VanTreeck

Staff in Attendance:

Parks and Recreation Department:

Pat Fuller, Division Manager, Park Ranger Division Angela Hanson, Executive Liaison Robert Clawson, Staff Liaison

Austin Energy Department

Ray Henning

Ex-Officio Members in Attendance:

Jessica Wilson, Environmental Conservation Manager, Watershed Protection Department Director Designee Michael Embesi, City Arborist, Planning and Development Review Department

MEETING MINUTES

A. CALL TO ORDER

Board Chair Brewer called the meeting to order at 5:34P.M.

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Motion made by Board member Fleming, seconded by Vice-Chair Hayes to approve the UFB meeting minutes of November 14, 2012. Board member Maceo abstained.

C. CITIZEN COMMUNICATION

The first 4 (four) speakers signed up prior to the calling of the meeting to order are allowed a three-minute allotment each to address their concerns regarding items not posted on the agenda.

Craig Nazor – Sierra Club – Trees/Austin Energy – LCRA Electrical issue at Gracywoods neighborhood. Eight years trees were trimmed and removed. Four years later, more trees were trimmed. Now trees to be trimmed again. Higher gauge transmission lines put in. 70% of canopy removed. Recommended to contact UFB members individually to sponsor an action item, or contact council member or the Mayor.

Zoila Vega – Parker Lane Trees – Copy of email to UFB members distributed. Amount of water for these trees an issue. What is plan for watering these trees?

Brian Leonard – Barton Springs Pool – Petition presented to UFB against grounds improvement project. South Hill changes are the issue. 1,254 signatures gathered requesting no changes on South Hill.

D. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Introduction of Daniel vanTreeck, new UFB member.

Jessica Wilson – Grow Green Landscape training. Email sent to UFB members. Ready, Set, Plant. Partnership with PARD. Encourages larger buffer zones. More info on Tree Folks website.

Angela Hanson – Two containerized tree planting this week. Using reclaimed water. Invasive Species Management Plan – Bloomberg grant awarded. Imagine Austin – staff working on outlining green infrastructure priority program.

Michael Embesi – Jay Culver retired.

Board Chair Brewer announced a change to the order of the Agenda: First: Update on Republic Square Master Plan, second, move briefing on Lower Shoal Creek and Seaholm Development, and move #3 action item – Discuss and make recommendations for staff about vegetation issues in the Lower Shoal Creek and Seaholm Developments, to allow City staff to present briefings, and give board members time to discuss.

E. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

- 1. Discussion and recommendation of possible action for submittal of UFB comments on the proposed Urban Wildland Interface code to lessen fire hazards in the Austin Area. Presenter: UFB Working Group Urban Wildland Interface working Group.
 Presentation made by Board member Fleming. In the UFB recommendation regarding the proposed WUI fire code, all words "should" be changed to "shall". Motion made by Board member Fleming, seconded by Board Vice-Chair Hayes, to accept the recommendations with changes of the Wildfire Interface code to lessen fire hazards in the Austin area for fire risk reduction and forward to City Council. All in favor.
- 2. Provide recommendations to City Council on the Barton Springs Grounds Improvement Plan. Presenter: Patrick Brewer, Board Chair. Citizen comments by Brian Leonard regarding language concerning South side. Vice Chair Hayes provided a draft letter concerning increasing soil volumes on the south parking area and the use of Silva cells, and Chair Brewer provided a document listing five points on pitfalls in the tree court area. (Please Board and Commission website for a copy of these handouts). Motion made by Vice Chair Hayes, seconded by Board member Fleming to provide recommendations to council regarding south parking lot, tree court and south lawn at Barton Springs Pool.

 Substitute motion Motion made by Board member Fleming, seconded by vanTreeck to approve Barton Springs General Grounds Improvement Plan, with following recommendations:
 - 1. With regard to renovations in the Tree Court area, to assuage concerns for protection of tree root zones, the following recommendations are made for construction activities and staging:
 - A. That the entire Tree Court is treated as a Critical Root Zone, and all associated protection and compaction avoidance restrictions be followed.
 - B. That decomposed granite is removed from the root zones and beneath the proposed walk to native grade.
 - C. That the piers for the concrete walk suspended pavement are excavated for the first two feet with an air excavation tool.
 - D. That the soil beneath the suspended pavement is de-compacted after the piers are poured and heavy equipment will not be used on the soil.

- E. That an approved Certified Arborist, Registered Consulting arborist, or appropriate city staff be present during soil work operations to approve each of the above stages of construction.
- 2. Remove the overlook from the plan and pathway to the overlook.
- 3. Increase size of planting median in south parking area to 4000 square feet and reduce the large maturing trees in the planting to two trees. All in favor.
- 3. Discuss and make recommendations for staff about vegetation issues in the Lower Shoal Creek and Seaholm Developments. Presenter: Patrick Brewer, Board Chair. Soil issue volumes were discussed. Working group to assemble to provide input for this project specifically about improving soil volumes. Chair Brewer, and Board members Maceo and vanTreeck to present information to Board at the January, 2013 meeting. Motion made by Board member Fleming, seconded by Board member Maceo to postpone action on this item until the January 2013 meeting. All in favor.
- 4. Discussion and action to request more time to review and refine the process for implementing the Pilot Program for Prominent Trees. Presenter: Board Member Maceo. Motion made by Board member Fleming, seconded by Board member Maceo. to approve the letter to be sent to Mayor and Council member to ask for more time to address and refine process for preserving prominent trees. All in favor. Working group consists of Board member Maceo, Vice-Chair Hayes and Zoila Marchena. Board member Christopher Kite appoint to working group.

F. BRIEFINGS

- 4. Briefing on Lower Shoal Creek and Seaholm Developments. Presenter: Cynthia Jordan, Project Manager, Public Works Department and Marty Stump, Project Management Supervisor, Parks and Recreation Department. 2nd Street extension and and Library discussed. Seaholm redevelopment has multiple contractors, contracts, stakeholders. Public spaces to be developed. Power point presentation given. Heritage trees on Green Treatment? Eight protected heritage trees. Board member Classen stated he wanted to make sure the tree would be planted to be able to grow into heritage trees. Criteria will be met. No willows to be planted. Sidewalk along Seaholm wall being moved back to not interfere with the root zone of two trees. Chair Brewer stated a concern about soil volume amounts. Structural soil only used under pavement.
- 5. Austin Energy Line Clearance Monthly Update -- Ray Henning, Line Clearance Superintendent, Austin Energy. Monthly report presented by Ray Henning. Line miles are down. Working in neighborhoods with Oak Wilt issues. Tree distribution down some. In part due to holidays. Customer calls staying down. No significant storms. Offices have just been moved to 2500 Montopolis. Reason for not having monthly report ready for posting prior to meeting.
- 6. City Arborist Program Tree Presentation and Replenishment Monthly Update Michael Embesi, City Arborist, Planning and Development Review Department. Inclement weather possible. Crews are on standby. November and December stats are lower. Permitting is up for November and December. Downtown tree inventory completed and field work done. Data collected on all 19 inch and larger heritage tree species in central business district and all trees in the right of way.
- 7. City Arborist Program Heritage Tree Monthly Update Michael Embesi, City Arborist, Planning and Development Review Department. Multiple heritage trees removed due to poor health. Keith Morris introduced. Update given on Bowie Street Pecan tree. Environmental Design company doing the work. Board member Maceo asked about the agreement with the state concerning purchases of land sales with the City and some sort of working group with the City manager on a new interface between City

Manager and the land at 45th and Bull Creek. Not sure of results of the City council meeting. Would need to check with City Legal. Vice-Chair Hayes requested briefings on expenditures at future meetings. To be reported annually.

- 8. Update on Republic Square Master Plan. Presenter: Philip Koske, Design Workshop. Presentation on updates. Now at 90% phase of development. Now going to Boards and Commission to finalize plans. Design alternatives to deal with existing trees. Trees on 4th street to remain. Not proposing to move any trees from this site. San Antonio frontage no increase of impervious coverage. Plaza area to have some trees.
- 9. UFB Review and update on Strategic Goals Progress Report. Presenter: Patrick Brewer, Board Chair. Chair Brewer has been working on the soil volume issue. Board member Classen reported on review of the roles of the Urban Forestry Board and recommend expansion in key areas. Need to be involved in the early stages of projects. Recommending staff give UFB opportunity to participate in plans earlier. Expand advisory role to assist Forestry staff and actively participate in the development of standards for tree standards and best management practices. Staff be encouraged to periodically provide Oak Wilt information. Provide number of trees affected. Areas where Austin Energy will be pruning trees. Expand community outreach. Request input in the Urban Forest Management Plan. UFB to provide information concerning private trees.
- 10. Comprehensive Urban Forest Plan Update. Presenters: Leah Haynie, Program Coordinator, Forestry, and Angela Hanson, Acting Forestry Program Manager, Parks and Recreation Department. City code requirement since 1992. Staff met with approximately 10 City departments to work on this Plan. Initial outline developed and draft vision statement completed. Public input session held in April 2012. Nine hundred responses generated. Two working group meeting in June 2012 to review progress to date. Two working group meeting in December 2012. Leah Haynie reported on the two working group meetings in December. Board member Classen stated more public input is needed.
- **G. URBAN FORESTER EXECUTIVE LIAISON REPORT --** Angela Hanson, Acting Program Manager, Parks and Recreation Department, Urban Forestry Program, including:
 - Monthly Notification: Removal of protected size trees on parkland that constitute an imminent public safety hazard. Forestry program provided input to the request for proposals for scope of work for management operations and maintenance of city cemeteries. Current contract expires in April 2013. PARD to find replacement contractor. There have been concerns about the work of the current contractor. Scope of work revised. Had stakeholder input. Scope of work includes annual limited visual risk assessment and surveys of 3-inch and larger trees. Email received from Zoila Marchena regarding watering of cemetery trees. Angela Hanson to report on this item at January 2013 meeting.
 - Update on Invasive Species Management Plan implementation. Information provided in Announcements this meeting. Mapping City owned priority properties. Where on City owned land could we achieve multiple benefits by providing land management, top of watershed, creek buffer? Will help decide where to collect data. Staff was directed by City Council to look into the relationship between storm water and trees. Should we be funding tree maintenance out of the storm drainage fund? Average tree reduces 1700 to 2400 gallons of storm water per year.

H. FUTURE ITEMS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

Ideas for expansion of Urban Forestry Board. Presenter: Board Chair Patrick Brewer.

Discuss and make recommendations for staff about vegetation issues in the Lower Shoal Creek and Seaholm Developments. Presenter: Patrick Brewer, Board Chair

Update on Urban Forestry Board Management Plan Working Group. Presenter: Board Chair Patrick Brewer.

Executive Liaison Report on watering of trees at Parker Lane. Angela Hanson, Acting Program Manager, PARD Urban Forestry Program.

Meetings for 2013 will be at Northwest Recreation Center, 2913 Northland.

I. ADJOURNMENT

Board Chair Brewer adjourned the meeting at 9:22P.M. without objection.

The City of Austin is committed to compliance with the American with Disabilities Act. Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications are provided upon request. Meeting locations are planned with wheelchair access. If requiring Sign Language Interpreters or alternative formats, please give notice at least 4 (four) days before the meeting date. Please call Robert Clawson at the Parks and Recreation Department, at 978-2600, for additional information; TTY users route through Relay Texas at 711.

For more information on the Urban Forestry Board, please contact Angela Hanson at angela.hanson@austintexas.gov or by phone at 974-9551.